
FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

COUNCIL MAY ADD AND TAKE ACTION ON OTHER ITEMS NOT LISTED ON AGENDA

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2017                 COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M.                       FIRCREST CITY HALL, 115 RAMSDELL STREET 

1. CALL TO ORDER BY PRESIDING OFFICER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. PRESIDING OFFICER'S REPORT
5. CITIZEN COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

(Please sign the Public Attendance Roster/Public Hearing Sign-Up Sheet if you wish to speak during the meeting.)

6. COMMITTEE, COMMISSION & LIAISON REPORTS
A. Parks & Recreation
B. Environment, Planning, Building
C. Finance, IT
D. Administration

7. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Approval of vouchers/payroll checks

B. Approval of minutes: August 21, 2017 Special Meeting  
August 22, 2017 Regular Meeting 

C. Setting a public hearing on October 10, 2017 to receive comments on amendments to Fircrest
Municipal Code Title 22, regarding short-term rentals, home occupations, and outdoor storage of
vehicles.

D. Setting a public hearing on October 10, 2017 to receive comments on the potential annexation of
the 62nd Avenue West and 44th Street West Potential Annexation Area.

E. Setting public hearings on October 10 and 24, 2017 to receive comments on amendments to
Fircrest Comprehensive Plan and Pre-annexation Designations.

8. PUBLIC HEARING 7:15 P.M.

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. Adopt Ordinance: 2017 Budget Amendments 2nd Reading – Interim City Manager McDonald

10. NEW BUSINESS
A. Presentation: Preliminary 2018 Budget – Interim City Manager McDonald

B. Presentation: Community Center and Pool RFQ – Interim City Manager McDonald and Parks &
Recreation Director Grover

C. Motion: Viafore’s Italian Delicatessen liquor license application – Interim City Manager
McDonald

D. Motion: Orchard Market Group LLC liquor license application – Interim City Manager McDonald

E. Motion: Traffic Signal Safety Improvement Project award, contract, and Notice to Proceed –
Public Works Director Wakefield

F. Resolution: Morris Law, P.C. for land use and environmental law legal counsel – Interim City
Manager McDonald

G. Resolution:  City of Puyallup Jail Services – Chief Cheesman

11. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS
12. DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS
13. COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION
15. ADJOURNMENT







































CITY OF FIRCREST 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, AUGUST 21, 2017                                                COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
6:00 P.M.                                   FIRCREST CITY HALL, 115 RAMSDELL STREET 
 
CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL  
Mayor Pro Tempore Hunter T. George called the special meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 
and led the pledge of allegiance.  Councilmembers Blake Surina, Shannon Reynolds, 
Brett Wittner, and Jason Medley were present. Mayor Matthew Jolibois and 
Councilmember Denny Waltier were absent and excused. 
 
AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
There were none. 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE BY SENATOR O’BAN AND REPRESENTATIVE 
MURI 
Senator Steve O’Ban and Representative Dick Muri provided a 2017 legislative update, 
including education funding levy reform, status of the two-year new capital budget status 
and water rights bill conflict, efforts to alleviate impact of Sound Transit 3 taxes, and 
behavioral health investments.  In regards to submitting local capital budget requests for 
consideration by the Washington Legislature, O’Ban and Muri recommended the City 
submit requests to them by November 1, 2017. 
 
INTERIM CITY MANAGER “EXPECTATIONS” 
George welcomed Interim City Manager Bill McDonald and McDonald briefed the 
Council on what they can expect from him until a permanent city manager has been 
hired.  McDonald stated that in his 16 hours a week, he plans to focus on the business of 
the council, the budget, and day to day operations. 
 
UPDATE ON CITY MANAGER RECRUITMENT AND COMPENSATION 
Interim City Manager Bill McDonald briefed the Council on Prothman’s recruitment 
efforts for a permanent City Manager. McDonald briefed the Council on the memo 
submitted by former Interim City Manager Johnston, which includes data from the 2017 
AWC City and County Salary and Benefits Survey that shows the advertised salary for 
the Fircrest City Manager position is $10,000-$12,000/year below market compensation 
for a similar sized locality.  McDonald stated that the position was advertised on July 31, 
2017 and Prothman has received three applications to date, and although the position is 
well advertised and he has reached out to potential candidates, McDonald stated that he 
believes the low response is correlated to the low advertised salary range.  After some 
discussion on other potential factors affecting the recruitment efforts, George stated he 
will bring forth adjusting the advertised salary at the August 22, 2017 meeting for 
Council consideration. 
 



August 21, 2017                               Fircrest City Council Meeting Minutes – Special 2 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
Reynolds Moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:54 P.M., seconded by Wittner. The 
Motion Carried Unanimously. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
                                                                            Matthew Jolibois, Mayor 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
                                      Jessica Nappi, City Clerk 



CITY OF FIRCREST 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2017                                                            COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M.                                               FIRCREST CITY HALL, 115 RAMSDELL STREET 
 
CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, AND ROLL CALL  

Mayor Matthew Jolibois called the regular meeting to order at 7:03 P.M. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. Councilmembers Blake Surina, Shannon Reynolds, Brett Wittner, Hunter T. George, 
and Denny Waltier were present. Councilmember Jason Medley was absent and excused. 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER’S REPORT 

A. 2nd Quarter 2017 Financial Report 

Financial Director Corcoran presented the 2nd Quarter 2017 Financial report (January 1, 2017 
through June 30, 2017), which showed that actual revenues and expenditures are close to 
budgeted estimates.  The presentation included year-to-date information on the General Fund 
Revenues, General Fund Expenditures by Department, Actual Revenue Over/(Under) 
Expenditures, and Available Cash Balance per Fund. After a brief discussion, per Council 
request, staff indicated they would provide further information on cash and investment funds 
and cumulative reserves. Corcoran stated that the 2017 2nd Quarter Review report would be 
uploaded on the City of Fircrest website the following day. 
 

B. Community Center and Pool: Next Steps 

Parks and Recreation Director Grover briefed the Council on the staff recommended next steps 
of addressing the short-term issues related to the pool leak and achieving a long-term solution 
with the community center and pool.  Grover recommended the Council authorize the Interim 
City Manager to direct staff to issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) from consultants 
interested in providing professional services including, but not limited to, preliminary 
consultation, preliminary cost estimates (including operational and capital costs), and schematic 
drawings to be used in public meetings and citizen outreach materials for the several 
development scenarios.  Grover stated that the 2016 ARC Architects Feasibility Study 
recommended that repairing the pool in its current condition would be cost prohibitive and 
would cost just as much as a new pool.  McDonald added that the pool leak presents a potential 
risk and staff will coordinate with the City’s insurance provider to determine the risk and 
liability as well as reaching out to engineers to mitigate the risk.  There was a brief discussion 
on whether extending the 2016 ARC Architects contract would be an option and City Attorney 
Smith recommended not to extend the contract with ARC Architects due to the contract 
extension terms and that this proposed scope of work would be beyond the original contractual 
scope of work.  The Council gave approval to move ahead with a RFQ to seek the services of a 
qualified architectural/engineering firm to provide professional services for the rebuild or 
renewal of the Community Center and Pool. 



August 22, 2017 Fircrest City Council Meeting Minutes – Regular 2 

CITIZEN COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

The City of Fircrest received a submitted written public comment on August 8, 2017 by Lori 
Bisping of 506 Electron Way and Jolibois directed the City Clerk to enter the comments into the 
meeting minutes: 
 

Dear Fircrest City Council Members, 
 
I attended tonight’s City Council Meeting to convey my concerns about allowing city property to be 
used for a community garden. However, I was not allowed the opportunity to speak. Please accept 
this email in lieu of my public comment. 
 
According to past city council meeting minutes, two sites have been proposed for use as a 
community garden. Both have been rejected by council. However, a recommendation was made to 
consider the former Fox property on Electron Way. I am opposed to using tax funded property and 
city staff time to support this type of project. When the Fox property was purchased, I believe your 
citizen’s were told it was be used for an expansion of the Tot Lot and / or additional parking. As a 
tax payer, I expect the property to be used for the stated purpose or at least an identified need. 
 
I am sure council is aware that they are thirty five (35) community gardens in the City of Tacoma, 
eleven (11) on Metro Parks Property. These gardens struggle to be consistently maintained and 
have become an eyesore in their neighborhoods. Additional a September 7, 2016 article in the 
Tacoma News Tribune reported escalating problems with theft and vandalism. The article goes on 
to explain that numerous police hours had been expended in an attempt to address the issues. 
Fences would need to be built and the gardens locked. It doesn’t take much research to reveal that 
these are common problems with these gardens nationally. How much of our city staff time has 
already been expended on this topic? How many in the future? Clearly, this is not a project that 
has no impact to city funds. 
 
Why is council continuing to entertain discussion on this topic when none of the city’s strategic 
plans have identified community gardens as a need or desire of the citizens? In fact the Parks, 
Recreation, and Open Spaces Plan, calls for projects that have been planned to fit the parks and 
community. In addition, the impact to the city staff workload is to be analyzed. The recent parks 
and recreation survey may be a good indicator of what the citizens want. There were 433 citizen 
responses, numerous suggestions were offered, only 1 asked for a community garden. 
 
Tonight, I was disappointed that proper protocol wasn’t followed so that I could personally deliver 
this message. I will give council the benefit of the doubt that an oversite was made. However, I 
respectfully request that this agenda be read and entered into the minutes at the next council 
meeting. 
 
I urge council to be more diligent in ensuring that citizen requests to speak are honored. I also 
suggest that the mayor slow down when he requests input from citizens and council. Rushing 
through the agenda denies public dialogue and gives the appearance that council is not interested 
in hearing opposing views. Especially when a particular topic has the majority of the councils 
support. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 

 

Jolibois invited public comment.  The following individuals provided comments: 

 Neil Holden, Westside Disposal, invited the public to their 75th anniversary celebration 
scheduled for August 26, 2017. 



August 22, 2017 Fircrest City Council Meeting Minutes – Regular 3 

 Yolonda Brooks, 6448 19th Street W. commented on sewer availability to an annexed 
section of the city that is presently on a septic system. 

 

COMMITTEE, COMMISSION AND LIAISON REPORTS 

A. Water, Sewer, Storm 
Waltier reported no new updates. 

 

B. Street, Facilities, Equipment 
Jolibois reported that the inspections on the Emerson Street project is wrapping up and the 
transportation signal safety improvement grant award is moving forward. 

 

C. Public Safety, Court 
George reported that the Court Safety Committee met per State mandate to review security 
procedures.  George stated that the Committee made minor adjustments to its security plan to 
permit the Police Officer on duty the ability to search if there is reasonable suspicion, approved 
locks on doors, and plans to pursue grants for capital improvements 

 

D. Pierce County Regional Council 
Reynolds reported that the August 17, 2017 meeting was canceled. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Jolibois requested the City Clerk read the consent calendar as follows:  approval of Voucher No. 
209871 through Voucher No. 209943 in the amount of $484,140.81; approval of Payroll Check No. 
12839 through Payroll Check No. 12871 in the amount of $108,422.13; and approval of the June 
27, 2017 regular meeting minutes.  George Moved to approve the Consent Calendar as read; 
seconded by Reynolds. The Motion Carried Unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 

No public hearing was scheduled. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

There was no unfinished business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution No. 1490 authorizing the City Manager to execute of an agreement with eCivis, 
Inc., for a subscription to their grant search software and other services 

McDonald briefed the Council on the resolution that would authorize entering into an agreement 
with eCivis, Inc., that will allow Fircrest staff to access to their grant research and management 
software system.  Jolibois invited public comment; none was provided.  Wittner Moved to 
approve Resolution 1490 as written; seconded by Waltier. The Motion Carried 
Unanimously. 

 

B. Budget Amendment, 1st Reading 

Corcoran stated that tonight is the first reading of a Budget Amendment for anticipated revenues 
and expenditures not foreseen at the time of filing the 2017 Preliminary Budget and not 
provided for in the Adopted 2017 Budget. Corcoran stated that the fiscal impact would be 
increased in expenditures with corresponding increases in revenue or corresponding decreases in 
undesignated fund balances.  Corcoran briefed the Council the appropriations and stated that 



August 22, 2017 Fircrest City Council Meeting Minutes – Regular 4 

this proposal would provide the necessary budget to match the actual Beginning and Ending 
Fund Balances. Corcoran indicated that that the second reading will occur at the September 12, 
2017 Council meeting. Jolibois invited public comment; none was provided. 

 

C. City Manager Recruitment Efforts: Salary Adjustment 

Jolibois added an item to adjust the city manager’s compensation related to the city manager 
recruitment efforts and potential salary adjustments discussed at the August 21, 2017 Council 
work session for consideration of the Council. After a brief discussion, there was a consensus to 
raise the salary range by $10,000.  Corcoran indicated she would coordinate with McDonald to 
determine the impact to the 2018 Budget. 

 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

McDonald stated that there was an incident at the Public Safety building earlier that afternoon 
involving an individual backing into a Fircrest patrol car. Sergeant Villamoor indicated that the 
officer involved was brought to a nearby hospital to be evaluated for injuries.  McDonald added that 
he is seeking guidance from the insurance risk pool regarding a request made by an official at the 
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs for the purpose of parking their General Services 
Administration (GSA) vehicle and personal vehicle while GSA is in use.  McDonald stated he had 
an inquiry from a councilmember regarding summer water consumption rates and will bring back 
more information at a later date.  
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS 

None were provided. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 

The Council thanked the public for their attendance. Additional comments included: 
 George commended everyone’s involvement in the community meeting regarding the pool. 

 Waltier requested that the minutes reflect his concerns regarding the homeless camps near 
19th Street Fred Meyer store and homeless individuals stealing unattended items on lawns 
and from open garages in residential areas at night. He called on residents to remain vigilant. 

  
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There was none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

George Moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:43 P.M, seconded by Wittner.  The Motion 
Carried Unanimously. 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
                      Matthew Jolibois, Mayor 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
                                                 Jessica Nappi, City Clerk 





 

 
 

Sewer Fund 
 Expenditures 

 Sewer Treatment Services (535.60.51.00) 150,00016 
 Project Engineering (594.35.63.03) 100,00017 
 Undesignated Ending Fund Balance (508.80.04.30) (250,000)18 

  
ERR Fund 
 Expenditures 
 Capital Outlay-Admin (594.48.64.03) 1,10019 
 Capital Outlay-Info Systems (594.48.64.03) (1,100)20 
 Capital Outlay-Street (594.48.64.12) 14,20021 
 Ending Fund Balance-ERR (508.10.05.01) (14,200)22 
     
The City of Fircrest adopts an annual budget at the fund level.  The above adjustments will 
result in an Amended 2017 Budget by fund as follows:  
 

FUND ORIGINAL ADJUST 5/9/17 ADJUST 9/12/17 AMENDED
General 7,739,626 229,726 10,950 7,980,302
Street 2,625,622 14,890 2,640,512
Storm Drain 1,121,800 (24,158) 1,097,642
Water 1,833,670 24,484 1,858,154
Sewer 3,918,200 48,441 3,966,641
BYSM 1,379,164 (58,552) 1,320,612
ERR 1,863,099 (10,570) 1,852,529
Police Investigation 11,500 11,500
REET 1,509,300 (31,151) 1,478,149
Cumulative Reserve 3,530,763 3,530,763

Total 25,532,744 193,110 10,950 25,736,804

2017 REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & BALANCES BY FUND

 
 
 
ADVANTAGE:  This proposal will provide necessary budget for the following: 
 

1. Youth Baseball Registration – additional revenue received. 
2. Codification Costs - $2,500 for Title 22 updates. 
3. Advertising – additional costs for annexation.  
4. Court Interpreter – additional costs for required change in policy. 
5. Salary & Wages – net after vacation payout and vacant City Manager position.  
6. Professional Services-Admin. – City Manager search and interim compensation. 
7. Central Office Printing – increased printing for business cards and forms. 
8. Youth Baseball – increase cost due to additional number of participants. 
9. Repairs & Maintenance-Parks – Irrigation leak repair by pool pit room. 
10. Uniforms-Police – outfitting two new officers. 



11. Machinery & Equipment Capital-Police – two new vehicles per Police Guild contract.
12. Machinery & Equipment-Public Safety Building – replace HVAC unit.
13. Other Improvements-Parks – Resurface Whittier tennis courts.
14. Designated Ending Fund Balance 44th Street – decrease for tennis courts.
15. Undesignated Ending Fund Balance-General – net decrease.
16. Sewer Treatment Services – increased cost based on new formula.
17. Project Engineering – Preliminary design of Drake Street lift station.
18. Ending Fund Balance-Sewer – net decrease.
19. Capital Outlay-Administration – purchase City Clerk computer instead of Info System.
20. Capital Outlay-Info Systems – purchased City Clerk computer instead of Info System.
21. Capital Outlay-Street – purchase snow plow to fit on new truck.
22. Ending Fund Balance – ERR net decrease.

DISADVANTAGES:  Decrease in Ending Fund Balance: 

• General (189,050)
• Sewer (250,000)
• ERR (14,200)

ALTERNATIVES:  None. 

Attachment: Ordinance 



 

Page 1 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

 

CITY OF FIRCREST 
ORDINANCE NO. 1599 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING EMERGENCY EXPENDITURES OF FUNDS 
FOR MATTERS NOT FORESEEN AT THE TIME OF FILING 
THE PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR 2017 AND NOT PROVIDED 
FOR IN THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR 2017. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates certain revenues and expenditures not foreseen at the 
time of filing the Annual Budget for 2017; and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fircrest adopts an annual budget at the fund level and; 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the adopted 2017 budget to defray the anticipated 
expenditures; Now, Therefore,  
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1.  These revenues and expenditures are not one of the emergencies specifically 
enumerated in RCW 35A.33.080. 
 
Section 2.  The anticipated revenues and expenditures are as follows:  

 
                                                                                  Increase/ (Decrease) 

General Fund 
  Revenues 
   Youth Baseball Registration 10,950 
    (001.347.60.00.02) 
  Expenditures 
   Codification Costs 2,500 
    (511.60.49.03) 
   Advertising-Legislative 2,000 
    (511.60.41.01) 
   Court Interpreter 2,000 
    (512.50.41.03) 
   Salary & Wages-Admin (10,000) 
    (513.10.10.00) 
   Professional Services-Admin 64,500 
    (513.10.41.00) 
   Central Office Printing 2,000 
    (518.10.34.02) 
   Youth Baseball 3,500 
    (571.20.49.09) 



 

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

 

   Repairs & Maint.-Parks 3,000 
    (576.80.48.00) 
   Uniforms-Police 5,500 
    (521.22.49.01) 
   Machinery & Equipment-Police 101,560 
    (594.21.64.00) 
   Other Improvements-Parks 35,000 
    (594.21.64.00) 
   Desg. Ending Fund Balance-44th Street (35,000) 
    (508.10.00.01) 
   Undesignated Ending Fund Balance (154,050) 

   (508.80.00.01) 
   

Sewer Fund 
 Expenditures 
  Sewer Treatment Services 150,000 
   (535.60.51.00) 
  Project Engineering 100,000 
   (594.35.63.03) 
  Undesignated Ending Fund Balance (250,000) 
   (508.80.04.30) 

  
 ERR Fund 
 Expenditures 
  Capital Outlay-Admin 1,100 
   (594.48.64.03) 
  Capital Outlay-Info Systems (1,100) 
   (594.48.64.03) 
  Capital Outlay-Street 14,200 
   (594.48.64.12) 
  Ending Fund Balance-ERR (14,200) 
   (508.10.05.01) 

                                                                                                                                                                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

 

Section 3.   The anticipated revenues and expenditures will result in the 2017 Amended 
Budget by fund as follows: 

 
2017 REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & BALANCES BY FUND

FUND ORIGINAL ADJUST 5/9/17 ADJUST 9/12/17 AMENDED
General 7,739,626 229,726 10,950 7,980,302
Street 2,625,622 14,890 2,640,512
Storm Drain 1,121,800 (24,158) 1,097,642
Water 1,833,670 24,484 1,858,154
Sewer 3,918,200 48,441 3,966,641
BYSM 1,379,164 (58,552) 1,320,612
ERR 1,863,099 (10,570) 1,852,529
Police Investigation 11,500 11,500
REET 1,509,300 (31,151) 1,478,149
Cumulative Reserve 3,530,763 3,530,763

Total 25,532,744 193,110 10,950 25,736,804
 

 
 

 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST, 
WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 12th day of September 2017. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 

  
___________________________________ 

    Matthew Jolibois, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jessica Nappi, City Clerk 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

__________________________________ 
   Michael B. Smith, City Attorney 

 
   Publication Date: 
   Effective Date: 















 
 
 
 

Applicant Information 
 

Liquor License Renewal 
 
 
 

Applicant Name Viafore's Italian Delicatessen 
Establishment Name Viafore's 
Address 604 Regents Boulevard 

Comments 
 
Zoned NC [Neighborhood Commercial].  This is a permitted use. 
Planning/Building has no objection to the license renewal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director Signature Angelie Stahlnecker 
Date 08/17/2017 Department Planning/Building 

 
 
 
 















 
 
 
 

Applicant Information 
 

Liquor License Renewal 
 
 
 

Applicant Name Orchard Market Group LLC 
Establishment Name OMG Food mart 
Address 4040 Orchard Street #118 (Emerson 

Court) 
Comments 

 
Zoned Commercial Mixed Use.  This is a permitted use. 
Planning/Building has no objection to the license renewal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director Signature Angelie Stahlnecker 
Date 08/17/17 Department Planning/Building 

 
 





 

 
 

This project is also required to meet the Underutilized Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (UDBE) 
goal of 9% and Northeast Electric, LLC has provided a certification meeting that goal. KPG and 
WSDOT acknowledges that Northeast Electric, LLC is a qualified bidder and this is a responsive 
bid for the Traffic Signal Safety Improvement Project. 
 
Attachments: Certified Bid Tabulation 
  KPG Letter 
 



Bid Tabulation

Project Name: Traffic Signal Safety Improvements

Federal Aid No. 
Acct No.:

Bid Opening Date:

Notes: Engineer's Estimate Bidder #1 Bidder #2 Bidder #3 Bidder #4 Bidder #5

Indicates error corrected by PW dept $X,XXX.XX
Indicates Bidder modified Proposal $X,XXX.XX
Indicates Revision Due to Duplication 

Bid 

Item
Bid Item Description Unit Quant Unit Price Amount

101 Minor Change EQ. ADJ. 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
102 Record Drawings LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
103 SPCC Plan LS 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
104 Mobilization LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
105 Project Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 $30,400.00 $30,400.00
106 Erosion/Water Pollution Control LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
107 Roadside Restoration LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
108 Traffic Signal System Modification at Emerson Street & Alameda Avenue LS 1 $65,000.00 $65,000.00
109 Traffic Signal System Modification at Regents Blvd & Alameda Avenue LS 1 $101,000.00 $101,000.00
110 Repair of Blocked or Damaged Conduit FA 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

$231,900.00

A201 Project Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 $2,400.00 2,400.00$              

A202 Emergency Vehicle Preemption Detectors at Emerson Street &
Alameda Avenue, Complete

LS
1

$7,000.00 7,000.00$              

A203

Emergency Vehicle Preemption Detectors at Regents Blvd & Alameda
Avenue, Complete

LS
1

$7,000.00 7,000.00$              

16,400.00$            

248,300.00$          

Incorrect Base Bid Total labeled on 
sheet LD-6 

$17,828.00

$242,130.00

Total Bid Alternate A1=

Ttoal Base Bid + Alternate 1 =

$224,302.00

$3,905.00

$7,003.00

$6,920.00

$47,215.00
$1,250.00
$3,750.00
$49,922.00
$90,665.00

$4,000.00

$27,379.00

$238,486.00

Amount

$2,500.00
$2,000.00
$1,000.00
$22,000.00

$211,107.00

$7,500.00

$9,760.00

$10,119.00

$28,000.00
$3,500.00
$2,500.00
$65,396.00
$84,211.00

$4,000.00

$25,200.00

$249,800.00

Amount

$2,500.00
$3,500.00
$2,500.00
$15,000.00

$224,600.00

$5,000.00

$10,100.00

$10,100.00

$40,000.00
$2,500.00
$5,000.00
$50,000.00
$95,000.00

$4,000.00

$11,797.00

$264,511.00

Amount

$2,500.00
$2,000.00
$600.00

$23,000.00

$252,714.00

$2,331.00

$4,819.00

$4,647.00

$42,784.00
$2,087.00
$9,255.00
$62,275.00
$104,000.00

$4,000.00

$20,000.00

Amount

$2,500.00
$2,000.00
$1,017.00
$22,796.00

$321,300.00

$38,000.00

$10,000.00

$8,000.00

$25,000.00
$300.00
$2,000.00
$2,500.00

$283,300.00

Amount

$4,000.00

$104,000.00
$52,500.00
$5,000.00
$8,000.00
$80,000.00

Prepared By: George Hilen
Date: August 24, 2017

Transportation Systems, Inc.
6917 166th Ave E
Sumner, WA 98390

Titan Earthwork, LLC
1585 Valentine Ave Se
Pacific, WA 98407

Northeast Electric, LLC
1780 Down River Drive
Woodland, WA 98674

Prime Electric
13301 SE 26th St
Bellevue, WA 98055

Totem Electric of Tacoma, Inc
2332 Jefferson Ave
Tacoma, WA 98402*

HSIP-0455(003)

August 24, 2017 @ 10a.m.

BASE BID

BID ALTERNATE A1 - ERMERGENCY VEHICLE PREEMPTION DETECTORS

Total Base Bid =

17035 Traffic Sig Safety Bid Tabs.xls 1 of 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 29, 2017           

 

 

City of Fircrest 

115 Ramsdell Street 

Fircrest, WA 98466-6999 

 
Attn: Jerry Wakefield, P.E., Public Works Director 

 

RE:  Traffic Signal Safety Improvements 
 

 

 

Dear Jerry, 

 

As requested, KPG has completed the verification for Northeast Electric, LLC for the Traffic Signal Safety Improvements 

Project. 

 

As part of our review, we contacted all five of their listed references. The references included contacts from local agencies, 

County officials, and WSDOT personnel. Four out of the five references were able to be contacted. All of the feedback we 

received was positive and included comments such as: “No issues”, “Project was complete and successful” and “Good 

relationship”. 

 

We have checked the status of Northeast Electric, LLC on the Washington State Labor and Industries web page to confirm they 

are currently insured, bonded, and licensed. Additionally, no strikes or debarment records arose federally or statewide.  

 

Northeast Electric, LLC completed the Underutilized Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Certification Form. The 9% UDBE 

Condition of Award Contract Goal, based on their bid of $238,486.00, equals to $21,463.74. The Contractor listed is Puget 

Sound Traffic Control, LLC who is being subcontracted for a total of $22,000.00. This single subcontractor will satisfy the 

total dollar amount needed for UDBE participation. We have checked the status of Puget Sound Traffic Control on the 

Washington State Labor and Industries web page to confirm they are currently insured, bonded, and licensed. Additionally, no 

strikes or debarment records arose federally or statewide. 

 

KPG Acknowledges that Northeast Electric, LLC is a qualified bidder and this is a responsive bid for the Traffic Signal Safety 

Improvements Project. We recommend the City of Fircrest award the project to Northeast Electric, LLC. 

 

We have enclosed the contractor verification package and reference checks for your review. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 

Aaron Knight, P.E. 

Project Manager 
KPG, Inc. 

 
 

Cc:  Project file 





 

Page 1 of 1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

CITY OF FIRCREST 
RESOLUTION NO. 1491 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE AMENDMENT #11 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH THE LAW FIRM OF MORRIS LAW, P.C. FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF EXTENDING THE TERM OF SAID AGREEMENT 
FOR SPECIAL LEGAL COUNSEL SERVICES IN LAND USE MATTERS 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL LAW THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2018. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City to retain 
special legal counsel with expertise in land use law to provide legal assistance in land 
use and environmental policy issues that could arise during land use proceedings and 
other land use issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City contracted for professional services with the Law Office of Morris 
Law, P.C., to provide special legal counsel on land use matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, Morris Law, P.C., has substantial experience and knowledge in the field of 
land use and environmental law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the budgeted amount is included in the 2018 Legal Services department 
for special legal counsel; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fircrest desires to maintain these services for as long as 
necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, the contract was first approved in 2008 and the fee for services rendered 
has not increased from the hourly rate of $275.00; Now, Therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to amend the contract term with the 
Law Firm of Morris Law, P.C., for special legal counsel related to land use matters from 
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 12th day of September 
2017. 
 

                                                                          APPROVED 
       

___________________________________                                                                                                                                   
Matthew Jolibois, Mayor 

  
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________   
Jessica Nappi, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Michael B. Smith, City Attorney  



AMENDMENT #11 
TO THE CITY OF FIRCREST 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE LAW FIRM OF MORRIS 
LAW, P.C. FOR SPECIAL LEGAL COUNSEL SERVICES RELATING TO LAND USE 
MATTERS  
 
This amendment is hereby made and entered into this 12th day of September 2017 by and between 
the City of Fircrest, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as 
the “City” and Morris Law, P.C.  
 
WITNESSETH:  
 

1. Purpose  
The purpose of this amendment is to amend paragraphs 3 and 6 of the December 26, 2007 
contract with Morris Law, P.C., for special legal counsel services, regarding the term of 
the agreement and payment for services. This amendment is limited as set forth herein. All 
of the remaining terms and conditions of the December 26, 2007 agreement shall remain 
in full force and effect. The amendments are as follows:  
 

Pursuant to Section 3 of the Agreement the City hereby exercises its 
option to extend the term of the Agreement for one year to expire 
December 31, 2018. 
 
Pursuant to Section 6 of the Agreement, Consultant shall receive 
remuneration for fees for services rendered in the sum of $275.00 
(TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY FIVE DOLLARS) per hour.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to these presents have executed this contract in duplicate, 
each of which shall be deemed as originals, in the year and day first above mentioned.  
 
CITY OF FIRCREST      MORRIS LAW, P.C.  
 
 
By ________________________     By ________________________  

City Manager        Carol Morris, President 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
By ________________________  

City Attorney 





 

Page 1 of 1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

CITY OF FIRCREST 
RESOLUTION NO. 1492 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR JAIL SERVICES WITH THE 
CITY OF PUYALLUP. 

 
WHEREAS, Fircrest wishes to designate the Puyallup Jail as a place of confinement for 
the incarceration of one or more inmates lawfully committed to its custody; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Fircrest wishes to continue contracting with the City of Puyallup 
for jail services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fircrest will benefit from the use of the Puyallup City Jail; Now, 
Therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST: 
 
Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute an Agreement 
for Jail Services with the City of Puyallup. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 12th day of September 
2017. 
 

                                                                          APPROVED 
       

___________________________________                                                                                                                                   
Matthew Jolibois, Mayor 

  
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________   
Jessica Nappi, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Michael B. Smith, City Attorney  






















	Agenda
	Submitted Citizen Comment
	Vouchers
	8/21/17 Minutes
	8/22/17 Minutes
	Ordinance: Budget Amendment
	Motion: Viafore's Liquor License
	Motion: Orchard Market Liquor License
	Motion: Traffic Signal Safety Contract Award
	Resolution: Morris Law
	Resolution: Puyallup Jail
	FYI: Insurance Letter re: Pool Risk



